
 
 

 
Planning Commission  

  

AGENDA 
REGULAR MEETING OF THE PLANNING COMMISSION 

Click here to view the entire Agenda Packet 
 

Wednesday, December 1, 2021 
7:00 PM 

 

PUBLIC ADVISORY:  THIS MEETING WILL BE CONDUCTED EXCLUSIVELY THROUGH 
VIDEOCONFERENCE AND TELECONFERENCE.  Pursuant to Government Code Section 
54953(e) and the state declared emergency, this meeting of the Planning Commission will be 
conducted exclusively through teleconference and Zoom videoconference. The COVID-19 state 
of emergency continues to directly impact the ability of the members to meet safely in person and 
presents imminent risks to the health of attendees. Therefore, no physical meeting location will be 
available. 
 
To access the meeting remotely: Join from a PC, Mac, iPad, iPhone, or Android device:  
Please use this URL https://us06web.zoom.us/j/83800308140.  If you do not wish for your name 
to appear on the screen, then use the drop down menu and click on "rename" to rename 
yourself to be anonymous.  To request to speak, use the “raise hand” icon by rolling over the 
bottom of the screen.   
  
To join by phone: Dial 1 669 900 6833 and enter Meeting ID: 838 0030 8140.  If you wish to 
comment during the public comment portion of the agenda, Press *9 and wait to be recognized by 
the Chair.   
 
Please be mindful that the video conference and teleconference will be recorded. All rules of 
procedure and decorum that apply for in-person Planning Commission meetings apply for 
Planning Commission meetings conducted by teleconference or videoconference. 
 
See “MEETING PROCEDURES” below. 

 

All written materials identified on this agenda are available on the Planning Commission 
webpage:https://www.cityofberkeley.info/Clerk/Commissions/Commissions__Planning_C
ommission_Homepage.aspx 

 

PRELIMINARY MATTERS 

 

1.   Roll Call: Wiblin, Brad, appointed by Councilmember Kesarwani, District 1 
 Vincent, Jeff, appointed by Councilmember Taplin, District 2 
    Moore III, John E. “Chip”, appointed by Councilmember Bartlett, District 3 
 Oatfield, Christina, appointed by Councilmember Harrison, District 4 
 Mikiten, Elisa, appointed by Councilmember Hahn, District 5 

  Kapla, Robb, Chair, appointed by Councilmember Wengraf, District 6 
Twu, Alfred, appointed by Councilmember Robinson, District 7  

Page 1 of 47

https://us06web.zoom.us/j/83800308140
https://www.cityofberkeley.info/Clerk/Commissions/Commissions__Planning_Commission_Homepage.aspx
https://www.cityofberkeley.info/Clerk/Commissions/Commissions__Planning_Commission_Homepage.aspx


 

Hauser, Savlan, Vice Chair, appointed by Councilmember Droste, District 8 
Ghosh, Barnali, appointed by Mayor Arreguin 

 
2.  Order of Agenda:  The Commission may rearrange the agenda or place items on the 

Consent Calendar. 
 

3.  Public Comment:  Comments on subjects not included on the agenda. Speakers may 
comment on agenda items when the Commission hears those items.  (See “Public 
Testimony Guidelines” below): 

 
4.  Planning Staff Report including Future Agenda Items:  In addition to the items below, 

additional matters may be reported at the meeting.   

5.  Chairperson’s Report:  Report by Planning Commission Chair. 

6. Committee Reports:  Reports by Commission committees or liaisons.  In addition to the 
items below, additional matters may be reported at the meeting. 

7.  Approval of Minutes:  Approval of Draft Minutes from the meeting on November 3, 2021. 

8.  Other Planning-Related Events:   

 
AGENDA ITEMS:  All agenda items are for discussion and possible action.  Public Hearing items 
require hearing prior to Commission action. 

 

 
 
 
 
 

ADDITIONAL AGENDA ITEMS:  In compliance with Brown Act regulations, no action may be 
taken on these items.  However, discussion may occur at this meeting upon Commissioner 
request. 
 

Information Items:   
 

• None. 
 

Communications:  
 

• BART Communications  
 

Late Communications: (Received after the packet deadline):  
 

• Supplemental Packet One – received by noon two days before the meeting 

9. 
 
 
 
 
 
10. 
 
 
 
 

Action: 
Recommendation: 
 
Written Materials: 
Presentation: 
 
Presentation: 
Recommendation: 
Written Materials: 
Presentation: 
 

Public Hearing: Tentative Tract Map #8621 
Hold a public hearing to consider Tentative Map #8621 
pursuant to BMC Section 21.16.047. 
Attached 
N/A 
 
Zoning Ordinance Revision Project (ZORP) Update 
Receive presentation on status of the ZORP Project.  
N/A 
N/A 
 

Page 2 of 47



 

• Supplemental Packet Two  

• Supplemental Packet Three  
 

ADJOURNMENT 
 
****   MEETING PROCEDURES **** 
 
Public Testimony Guidelines: 
All persons are welcome to attend the virtual meeting and will be given an opportunity to address 
the Commission. Speakers are customarily allotted up to three minutes each.  The Commission 
Chair may limit the number of speakers and the length of time allowed to each speaker to ensure 
adequate time for all items on the Agenda.  Customarily, speakers are asked to address agenda 
items when the items are before the Commission rather than during the general public comment 
period.  Speakers are encouraged to submit comments in writing. See “Procedures for 
Correspondence to the Commissioners” below. 
 
Procedures for Correspondence to the Commissioners: 
All persons are welcome to attend the virtual hearing and will be given an opportunity to address 
the Commission. Comments may be made verbally at the public hearing and/or in writing before 
the hearing. The Commission may limit the time granted to each speaker.  
 
Written comments must be directed to the Planning Commission Secretary at the Land Use 
Planning Division (Attn: Planning Commission Secretary), 1947 Center Street, Second Floor, 
Berkeley CA 94704, or via e-mail to: apearson@cityofberkeley.info. All materials will be made 
available via the Planning Commission agenda page online at this address: 
https://www.cityofberkeley.info/PC/.   
 
Correspondence received by 12 noon, nine days before this public meeting, will be included as 
a Communication in the agenda packet.  Correspondence received after this deadline will be 
conveyed to the Commission and the public in the following manner:  
 

• Correspondence received by 12 noon two days before this public meeting, will be 
included in a Supplemental Packet, which will be posted to the online agenda as a Late 
Communication and emailed to Commissioners one day before the public meeting. 
 

• Correspondence received after the above deadline and before the meeting will be 
included in a second and/or third Supplemental Packet, as needed, which will be posted 
to the online agenda as a Late Communication and emailed to the Commissioners by 
5pm on the day of the public meeting. 
 

Note: It will not be possible to submit written comments at the meeting. 
 
Communications are Public Records:  Communications to Berkeley boards, commissions, or 
committees are public records and will become part of the City’s electronic records, which are 
accessible through the City’s website.  Please note:  e-mail addresses, names, addresses, and 
other contact information are not required, but if included in any communication to a City 
board, commission, or committee, will become part of the public record.  If you do not want 
your e-mail address or any other contact information to be made public, you may deliver 
communications via U.S. Postal Service, or in person, to the Secretary of the relevant board, 
commission, or committee.  If you do not want your contact information included in the public 
record, please do not include that information in your communication.  Please contact the 
Secretary to the relevant board, commission, or committee for further information. 
 

Page 3 of 47

https://www.cityofberkeley.info/PC/


 

Communication Access: To request a meeting agenda in large print, Braille, or on audiocassette, 
or to request a sign language interpreter for the meeting, call (510) 981-7410 (voice), or 981-6903 
(TDD). Notice of at least five (5) business days will ensure availability. 
 
Meeting Access: To request a disability-related accommodation(s) to participate in the 
meeting, including auxiliary aids or services, please contact the Disability Services Specialist, at 
981-6418 (V) or 981-6347 (TDD), at least three (3) business days before the meeting date.  

 
--- 
 
I hereby certify that the agenda for this regular meeting of the Planning Commission was posted 
at the display case located near the walkway in front of the Maudelle Shirek Building, 2134 Martin 
Luther King Jr. Way, as well as on the City’s website, on November 22, 2021.   
 
 
____________________________________ 
Alene Pearson 
Planning Commission Secretary  

Page 4 of 47



Planning Commission 

 DRAFT MINUTES OF THE REGULAR PLANNING COMMISSION MEETING 1 

November 3, 2021 2 

The meeting was called to order at 7:02 p.m. 3 

Location: Virtual meeting via Zoom 4 

1. ROLL CALL:5 

Commissioners Present: Laurie Capitelli, Barnali Ghosh, Savlan Hauser, Robb Kapla,6 

Elisa Mikiten, Chip Moore, Christina Oatfield, Alfred Twu, and Jeff Vincent.7 

Commissioners Absent: Brad Wiblin.8 

Staff Present: Secretary Alene Pearson, Katrina Lapira, Alisa Shen, Justin Horner, and9 

Steve Buckley.10 

2. ORDER OF AGENDA: No changes.11 

3. PUBLIC COMMENT PERIOD: 012 

4. PLANNING STAFF REPORT:13 

14 

• City Council15 

o October 26 – ADU Ordinance: Action requires amendments to zoning language16 

o November 30 - ADU Ordinance: Public Hearing on amended Ordinance17 

• Planning Workshop18 

o October 27 – Housing Element Public Workshop #119 

▪ Recording20 

▪ Survey open thru November 821 

• Objective Standards22 

o Self- guided tour and survey to be released around Thanksgiving23 

• Planning Commission24 

o December 125 

▪ Tentative Tract Maps26 

▪ ZORP Update27 

Information Items: 28 

• None.29 
30 
31 

Item 7 
Planning Commission 

December 1, 2021

Page 5 of 47

https://cityofberkeley.app.box.com/v/HousingElementWorkshop1
https://www.surveymonkey.com/r/berkeleyhousing


Communications: 32 

• BART Communications33 

Late Communications: See agenda for links. 34 

• Supplemental Packet One35 

• Supplemental Packet Two36 

• Supplemental Packet Three37 

5. CHAIR REPORT:38 

• None.39 

40 

6. COMMITTEE REPORT:  Reports by Commission committees or liaisons. In addition to the41 

items below, additional matters may be reported at the meeting.42 

43 

• None.44 

7. APPROVAL OF MINUTES:45 

Motion/Second/Carried (Vincent/Twu) to approve the Planning Commission Meeting Minutes 46 

from October 20, 2021.  47 
48 

Ayes: Capitelli, Ghosh, Kapla, Mikiten, Moore, Twu, and Vincent. Noes: None. Abstain: 49 

Hauser. Absent: Oatfield. (7-0-1-1) 50 

51 

8. OTHER PLANNING RELATED EVENTS:52 

• None.53 

AGENDA ITEMS 54 

9. Public Hearing: Ashby and North Berkeley BART Station Areas: Zoning and General55 

Plan Amendments, Joint Vision and Priorities, and Draft Environmental Impact Report56 

(EIR)57 

Based on the feedback received at the Planning Commission meeting in September, staff58 

shared the draft zoning and General Plan amendments, the City-BART Joint Vision and59 

Priorities (JVP) document, and the scope and general content of the Draft EIR.  Public60 

comments on the Draft EIR can be sent to bartplanning@cityofberkeley.info by December 1,61 

2021.62 

After staff’s presentation, the Planning Commission held a public hearing, received public63 

comment and provided input related to housing affordability and density.64 

Item 7 
Planning Commission 

December 1, 2021

Page 6 of 47

mailto:bartplanning@cityofberkeley.info


Motion/Second/Carried (Vincent/Moore) to close public hearing on the Ashby and North 65 

Berkeley BART Station Areas: Zoning and General Plan Amendments, Joint Vision and 66 
Priorities, and Draft EIR) at 9:25pm.  67 

68 

Ayes: Capitelli, Ghosh, Hauser, Kapla, Mikiten, Moore, Oatfield, Twu, and Vincent. Noes: 69 
None. Abstain: None. Absent: None. (9-0-0-0) 70 

71 

Public Comments: 53 72 

73 

10. 2022 Planning Commission Calendar74 

The Planning Commission reviewed the 2021 meeting schedule.75 

Motion/Second/Carried (Mikiten/Ghosh) to adopt the following 2022 Planning Commission 76 
meeting schedule:  77 

78 

Wednesday, January 19, 2022 79 
Wednesday, February 2, 2022  80 

Wednesday, March 2, 2022  81 
Wednesday, April 6, 2022  82 
Wednesday, May 4, 2022  83 

Wednesday, June 1, 2022  84 
Wednesday, July 6, 2022  85 

Wednesday, September 7, 2022 86 
Wednesday, October 5, 2022  87 

Wednesday, November 2, 2022  88 
Wednesday, December 7, 2022 89 

90 
Ayes: Capitelli, Ghosh, Hauser, Kapla, Mikiten, Moore, Oatfield, Twu, and Vincent. 91 
Noes:None. Abstain: None. Absent: None. (9-0-0-0) 92 

93 

Public Comments: 0 94 

95 

Motion/Second/Carried (Ghosh/Vincent) to adjourn the Planning Commission meeting at 96 

10:58pm.   97 
98 

Ayes: Capitelli, Ghosh, Hauser, Kapla, Mikiten, Moore, Oatfield, Twu, and Vincent. Noes: 99 
None. Abstain: None. Absent: None. (9-0-0-0) 100 

101 

Members in the public in attendance: 107 102 

Public Speakers: 53 103 

Length of the meeting: 3hr 56minutes  104 

Item 7 
Planning Commission 

December 1, 2021

Page 7 of 47



Page 8 of 47



Planning and Development Department 
Land Use Planning Division 

STAFF REPORT 

DATE:  December 1, 2021 

TO: Members of the Planning Commission 

FROM: Katrina Lapira, Assistant Planner 

SUBJECT: Public Hearing: Tentative Map 8621 for 1169-1173 Hearst (APN 57-2086-
13) 

RECOMMENDATION: 
Hold a Public Hearing to approve Tentative Map 8621 and recommend that the City 
Council review and certify the map pursuant to Berkeley Municipal Code (BMC) Section 
21.16.047, subject to the attached Findings and Conditions (see Attachment 1) and 
consistent with Berkeley’s Tentative Maps Ordinance BMC 21.16, the Subdivision Map 
Act, and Berkeley’s General Plan. 

BACKGROUND 
Tentative Tract Map #8621 would convert the sole ownership of the entire property into 
individual units - two duplex units and an existing single- family dwelling unit. The subject 
lot shares open space, pedestrian/ vehicular access, bicycle/ container storage, and 
drainage with the adjacent lot. The development project, which includes development of 
two duplexes and the rehabilitation of the existing single-family dwelling, was approved 
by the Zoning Adjustments Board (ZAB) on August 30, 2018 and by the City Council on 
June 9, 2020 after an appeal of the ZAB approval. 

Building permits for the construction of the new duplexes and the rehabilitation of the 
single-family dwelling unit were issued in 2021.   

I. Application Basics

A. Chronology of Subdivision Application:

September 29, 2021 Map Application submitted 

 October 29, 2021 Letter of Incompletion sent to Applicant 

 November 4, 2021 Map Application resubmitted 

 November 5, 2021 Map Application considered complete 

Item 9 
Planning Commission 

December 1, 2021

Page 9 of 47



Tentative Map for 1169-1173 Hearst    
 

 

 
B. CEQA Determination:   
Construction of the project is categorically exempt from the provisions of the 
California Environmental Quality Act (CEQA, Public Resources Code §21000, et 
seq.) pursuant to Section 15332 of the CEQA Guidelines (“In-fill Development 
Projects”). Approval of the Tentative Map is also categorically exempt pursuant to 
Section 15331 of the CEQA Guidelines which involves the operations and 
permitting of existing facilities involving no expansion of use beyond prior 
approvals. Furthermore, none of the exceptions in CEQA Guidelines Section 
15300.2 apply, as follows: (a) the site is not located in an environmentally sensitive 
area, (b) there are no cumulative impacts, (c) there are no significant effects, (d) 
the project is not located near a scenic highway, (e) the project site is not located 
on a hazardous waste site pursuant to Government Code Section 65962.5, and (f) 
the project will not affect any historical resource. 
 
C. Parties Involved: 
Applicant: Mark Rhoades, Rhoades Planning Group  
Property Owner: Hearst Avenue Cottages, LLC 

 
II. Project Description 

On June 9, 2021, City Council adopted Resolution 67,439-N.S. upholding the 2018 
ZAB decision to approve Use Permit #ZP2016-0028 to develop two parcels (APN 
57-2086-14 and 57-2086-13), including the substantial rehabilitation of seven 
existing dwelling units (three duplexes and one single-family dwelling) and 
construction of three two-story duplexes as a common interest development (i.e. 
condominiums) for a total of seven buildings and 13 dwelling units.   The subject 
tentative tract map accommodates a portion of the approved project under the 
subject use permit: the addition of two duplex units on a parcel (APN 57-2086-13) 
that is currently occupied by one single-family dwelling.    

 
III. Analysis 
 

A. Subdivision Map Act Consistency: 
The Public Works Department has reviewed the form and content of the Tentative 
Tract Map, and has verified that it contains the content required by the Subdivision 
Map Act, including the subdivision number, the legal address of the legal owner or 
subdivider, sufficient legal description to define the boundary of the proposed 
subdivision, the location, right of way width, and name of existing streets or 
highways, the widths, location, and identity of all existing easements.  The Public 
Works Department has determined that the Tentative Tract Map is suitable for 
review by the Planning Commission. 

 
B. Tentative Maps Ordinance (BMC Chapter 21.16) Consistency: 
The Planning Commission may approve, conditionally approve, or deny the tentative 
map in accordance with BMC Section 21.16.047. According to this section of the 
Code, the Planning Commission shall deny approval of the tentative map if it can 

Item 9 
Planning Commission 

December 1, 2021

Page 10 of 47



Tentative Map for 1169-1173 Hearst    
 

 

make any of the following findings from BMC Section 21.16.047.A through 
21.06.047.G.  
 

A:  That the proposed map is not consistent with the applicable general and 
specific plans. 

B:  That the design or improvement of the proposed subdivision is not 
consistent with applicable general and specific plans. 

C. The site is not physically suitable for the proposed density of 
development. 

  
Staff Analysis: The subject property and proposed improvements were evaluated 
and found to be consistent with the General Plan and Zoning Ordinance, and the 
density was found to be physically appropriate for the site and consistent with 
applicable zoning regulations, in conjunction with the Zoning Permits issued by 
the Zoning Adjustments Board (ZAB) on August 30, 2018 and upheld by the City 
Council on June 9, 2020. Therefore, Staff does not believe that either Findings 
A, B or C can be made.  

 
D. That the design of the subdivision or the type of the improvements is 

likely to cause environmental damage or substantially and avoidably 
injure fish, or wildlife, or their habitat. 

E. That the design of the subdivision or the type improvements is likely to 
cause serious public health problems. 

 
Staff Analysis:  The potential for substantial environmental damage, or harm to 
fish and wildlife, or their habitat, or the likelihood of public health problems was 
evaluated when the Use Permits for the project were approved by the ZAB on 
August 30, 2018. This included a review in order to determine whether any of the 
exceptions to the CEQA Exemption for in-fill development were present.  No 
potential environmental or public health impacts were found. Staff does not 
believe that either Findings D or E can be made.  
 

F. That conflicts with existing public access easements, in accordance with 
Section 6674(g), of the Subdivision Map Act, which states: “That the 
design of the subdivision or the type of improvements will conflict with 
easements, acquired by the public at large, for access through or use 
of, property within the proposed subdivision.  In this connection, the 
governing body may approve a map if it finds that alternate easements, 
for access or for use, will be provided, and that these will be substantially 
equivalent to ones previously acquired by the public.  This subsection 
shall apply only to easements of record or to easements established by 
judgment of a court of competent jurisdiction and no authority is hereby 
granted to a legislative body to determine that the public at large has 
acquired easements for access through or use of property within the 
proposed subdivision.” 

 

Item 9 
Planning Commission 

December 1, 2021

Page 11 of 47



Tentative Map for 1169-1173 Hearst    
 

 

Staff Analysis:  The City of Berkeley Public Works department has verified that 
the proposed Subdivision will not conflict with any easements of record, or with 
any easements established by judgment of a court. 
 

G. That the design of the subdivision does not provide, to the extent 
feasible, for future passive or natural heating or cooling opportunities in 
the subdivision. 

 
Staff Analysis:  Subdivision of the project into condominiums will not alter passive 
or natural heating or cooling opportunities since it is limited to the subdivision of 
previously entitled and permitted multiple family residences. Staff does not 
believe that Finding G can be made.   
 

C. Inclusionary Housing and Affordable Housing Mitigation Fee 
Use Permit #ZP2016-0028 includes the development of more than six new housing 
units and it is subject to the provisions of BMC Section 22.20.065 Affordable 
Housing Mitigation Fee (AHMF) if units will be rented and BMC Section 23C.12 
Inclusionary Housing Requirements if the units will be sold. As a finding for approval, 
the project will comply with the respective BMC affordable housing requirements for 
rental or ownership identified above by either providing one of the following options:  

• Ownership 

o One Below Market Rate unit for income range defined by BMC 23C.12.070 

and payment into the Affordable Housing Trust Fund of .2 unit; or  

o Full payment of the in-lieu fee  

• Rental 

o One Below Market Rate unit for a Very Low Income Household   and 

payment into the Affordable Housing Trust Fund of a prorated AHMF of 0.2 

unit: or  

o full payment of the AHMF  

IV. Public Notice/Comment 
BMC Section 21.16.045 requires public notice.  Notice was provided as follows: 

• Published in the Berkeley Voice on November 12, 2021; 

• Posted at the subject property on November 19 2021; and 

• Mailed to the applicant and owner of the subject property, and to owners and 
occupants of properties abutting upon or confronting 1169-1173 Hearst , on 
November 18, 2021. 

 
At the time of the writing of this report, there has been no public comment received. 

 

DISCUSSION AND NEXT STEPS 
After reviewing report, Planning Commission will hold a public hearing, receive public 
comment, and through a vote, make a recommendation to City Council that includes the 
Findings and Conditions on Tentative Map 8621. 

Item 9 
Planning Commission 

December 1, 2021

Page 12 of 47



Tentative Map for 1169-1173 Hearst    
 

 

 
ATTACHMENTS 
1. Findings and Conditions 

2.   Tentative Map 8621 

3.  Condominium Plans for Tentative Map 8621 

4.  Notice of Public Hearing 

 

KEY LINKS 
1. August 23, 2018. 1155-73 Hearst, Zoning Adjustments Board (ZAB) 

https://www.cityofberkeley.info/Planning_and_Development/Zoning_Adjustment_Bo

ard/1155-1173_Hearst.aspx  

2. June 9, 2020. Resolution No. 67,439, City Council ZAB Appeal. Uphold the ZAB 

Decision to Approve Use Permit #ZP2016-0028. 

https://www.cityofberkeley.info/uploadedFiles/Planning_and_Development/Level_3_-

_ZAB/2020-06-

09_Resolution_City%20Council_Upholding%20ZAB%20Decision_1155-

73%20Hearst.pdf  

 

Item 9 
Planning Commission 

December 1, 2021

Page 13 of 47

https://www.cityofberkeley.info/Planning_and_Development/Zoning_Adjustment_Board/1155-1173_Hearst.aspx
https://www.cityofberkeley.info/Planning_and_Development/Zoning_Adjustment_Board/1155-1173_Hearst.aspx
https://www.cityofberkeley.info/uploadedFiles/Planning_and_Development/Level_3_-_ZAB/2020-06-09_Resolution_City%20Council_Upholding%20ZAB%20Decision_1155-73%20Hearst.pdf
https://www.cityofberkeley.info/uploadedFiles/Planning_and_Development/Level_3_-_ZAB/2020-06-09_Resolution_City%20Council_Upholding%20ZAB%20Decision_1155-73%20Hearst.pdf
https://www.cityofberkeley.info/uploadedFiles/Planning_and_Development/Level_3_-_ZAB/2020-06-09_Resolution_City%20Council_Upholding%20ZAB%20Decision_1155-73%20Hearst.pdf
https://www.cityofberkeley.info/uploadedFiles/Planning_and_Development/Level_3_-_ZAB/2020-06-09_Resolution_City%20Council_Upholding%20ZAB%20Decision_1155-73%20Hearst.pdf


Page 14 of 47



Exhibit A

Item 9 - Attachment 1 
Planning Commission 

December 1, 2021

Page 15 of 47



Item 9 - Attachment 1 
Planning Commission 

December 1, 2021

Page 16 of 47



Item 9 - Attachment 1 
Planning Commission 

December 1, 2021

Page 17 of 47



Item 9 - Attachment 1 
Planning Commission 

December 1, 2021

Page 18 of 47



Item 9 - Attachment 1 
Planning Commission 

December 1, 2021

Page 19 of 47



Item 9 - Attachment 1 
Planning Commission 

December 1, 2021

Page 20 of 47



Item 9 - Attachment 1 
Planning Commission 

December 1, 2021

Page 21 of 47



Item 9 - Attachment 1 
Planning Commission 

December 1, 2021

Page 22 of 47



Item 9 - Attachment 1 
Planning Commission 

December 1, 2021

Page 23 of 47



Item 9 - Attachment 1 
Planning Commission 

December 1, 2021

Page 24 of 47



    Attachment 1
____________________________________________________________________________________ 

Findings and Conditions 

DECEMBER 1, 2021 

CEQA FINDINGS 

1. Construction of the project is categorically exempt from the provisions of the California
Environmental Quality Act (CEQA, Public Resources Code §21000, et seq.) pursuant to
Section 15332 of the CEQA Guidelines (“In-Fill Development Projects”) and the approval of
the Tentative Map is also categorically exempt pursuant to Section 15331 of the CEQA
Guidelines which involves the operations and permitting of existing facilities involving no
expansion of use beyond prior approvals. Furthermore, none of the exceptions in CEQA
Guidelines Section 15300.2 apply, as follows: (a) the site is not located in an
environmentally sensitive area, (b) there are no cumulative impacts, (c) there are no
significant effects, (d) the project is not located near a scenic highway, (e) the project site is
not located on a hazardous waste site pursuant to Government Code Section 65962.5, and
(f) the project will not affect any historical resource.

TENTATIVE MAP FINDINGS 

2. Pursuant to Berkeley Municipal Code Section 21.16.047, the Planning Commission cannot
make any of the seven findings for denial of the tentative map for the following reasons:

A. The proposed Tentative Tract Map #8621 is consistent with the applicable General Plan
policies because:

1. The proposed Tentative Map is consistent with Policy LU-3 Infill Development. The
infill development will add two duplexes at the rear of lot that contains an existing
single-family dwelling unit.

2. The project is consistent with Policy H-8 Maintain Housing, as it maintains and
rehabilitates the existing single-family dwelling unit on the lot.

3. The project is consistent with Policy H-32 Regional Housing Needs, as it adds four
new two-bedroom, one-bath residential units, to meet the City’s share of regional
housing needs.

B. The design and development of the project proposed to be subdivided is consistent with
the City of Berkeley’s General Plan because:

1. The project is consistent with Action B of Policy LU-7 Neighborhood Quality of
Life. It encourages sensitive infill residential development in a manner that
minimizes negative impacts on adjacent residential uses and is compatible with
existing development patterns.

2. The project is consistent with Policy LU-3 Infill Development and Policy UD-16
Context because it is architecturally compatible in design and scale with land uses
along Hearst Avenue and within the surrounding neighborhood.

Page 25 of 47



PLANNING COMMISSION 2593-2599 TELEGRAPH AVENUE 
December 1, 2021 

C. The project site and proposed improvements were evaluated and found to be consistent
with the General Plan and Zoning Ordinance, and the density was found to be physically
suitable for the site and consistent with applicable zoning regulations, in conjunction with
the Zoning Permits issued by the Zoning Adjustments Board on August 30, 2018 and
upheld by City Council on June 9, 2020.

D. The project will not have adverse environmental effects or substantially and avoidably
injure fish or wildlife in their habitat since it is limited to the subdivision of condominium
units in a building that has been evaluated to determine whether any of the exceptions to
the CEQA Exemption for in-fill development relating to environmental damage or harm to
fish and wildlife or their habitat, and none were found.

E. The design of the subdivision and the proposed improvements will not likely cause
serious health problems.

F. The project will not conflict with any public access easements, as determined pursuant to
a review by the Berkeley Public Works Department.

G. The project will not alter passive or natural heating or cooling opportunities because it
was designed to minimize solar access impacts and minimize detrimental shadows to
existing buildings adjacent to the property, as evaluated in its use permit approvals for
ZP2016-0028.

STANDARD CONDITIONS 

1. The Final Map shall be submitted for certification and shall be recorded in compliance with
the Berkeley Municipal Code, Title 21, and with the Subdivision Map Act of the State of
California.

2. A copy of the Conditions, Covenants, and Restrictions shall be filed with the Planning and
Development Department prior to approval of the Final Map.

3. Prior to approval of the Final Tract Map, an Affordable Housing Agreement shall be entered
into with the City’s Housing Department that specifies the number, location, and pricing of
units that will be affordable in order to remain compliant with Berkeley Municipal Code
23C.12 [Inclusionary Housing Requirements] and California Government Code 65915-
65918 [Density Bonuses and Other Incentives] regulations applied when project Use
Permits were issued.

4. The Standard conditions of approval for all subdivisions, new condominiums and
commercial condominium conversions within the City of Berkeley, dated January 1994,
applies and shall be satisfied prior to approval of the Final Map. (Attachment 1, Exhibit A)

Page 26 of 47



TOTAL UNITS: 5 RESIDENTIAL

1173 HEARST AVENUE
TENTATIVE TRACT MAP # 8621

CITY OF BERKELEY,  ALAMEDA COUNTY,  CALIFORNIA

FOR CONDOMINIUM PURPOSES

VICINITY MAP
APPROX SCALE: 1"=1,000'

PROJECT SUMMARY

ENGINEER'S STATEMENT

EASTON C. MCALLISTER, P.L.S. DATE

UTILITIES:

AT&T

PACIFIC GAS & ELECTRIC

CITY OF BERKELEY

CITY OF BERKELEY

COMCAST

BERKELEY FIRE DEPARTMENT

EAST BAY MUNICIPAL UTILITY DISTRICT (EBMUD)

CABLE TELEVISION:

TELEPHONE:

SEWAGE DISPOSAL:

FIRE PROTECTION:

WATER SUPPLY:

GAS & ELECTRIC:

STORM DRAIN:

RESIDENTIAL

SINGLE-FAMILY RESIDENTIAL

RESIDENTIALEXISTING ZONING:

CIVIL ENGINEER:

PROPOSED LAND USE:

EXISTING LAND USE:

PROPOSED ZONING:

TOTAL AREA:

DEVELOPER:

ARCHITECT:

SURVEYOR:

8,204 SQ FT (APPROX 0.19 ACRES)

ASSESSOR'S PARCEL NO: APN: 057-2086-013

PROPERTY ADDRESS:

P.L.S. 9583   EXP 03/31/23

TALUS, INC.

811 SAN RAMON VALLEY BLVD #201

DANVILLE , CA 94526

CONTACT: EASTON McALLISTER

(415) 948-0440

MORAN ENGINEERING, INC.

1930 SHATTUCK AVENUE, SUITE A

BERKELEY, CA 94704

(510) 848 - 1930

MULTI-FAMILY RESIDENTIAL

1173 HEARST AVENUE

BERKELEY, CA 94702

CIVIL ENGINEERING WORK ON THIS TENTATIVE PARCEL MAP HAS BEEN

PREPARED BY  ME  OR UNDER  MY DIRECTION IN ACCORDANCE WITH

STANDARD CIVIL ENGINEERING PRACTICE.

08/31/2021

HEARST AVENUE COTTAGES, LLC.

C/O RHOADES PLANNING GROUP

46 SHATTUCK SQUARE, SUITE 11

BERKELEY, CA 94704

ARRIS STUDIO ARCHTECTS

1327 ARCHER STREET, SUITE 220

SAN LUIS OBISPO, CA 93401

(805) 547 - 2240

SURVEY BY OTHERS
TOPOGRAPHIC AND BOUNDARY SURVEY PROVIDED BY

MORAN ENGINEERING, INC., DATED  JUNE 19, 2015.

FLOOD ZONE
ZONE X:  AREA OF MINIMAL FLOOD HAZARD.

FLOOD INSURANCE RATE MAP PANEL NUMBER

06001C0056H, DATED 12/21/2018.

THE UTILITY LINES SHOWN ON THIS DRAWING ARE DERIVED FROM

SURFACE OBSERVATION AND ARE APPROXIMATE ONLY. ACTUAL

LOCATION AND SIZE, TOGETHER WITH PRESENCE OF ANY ADDITIONAL

UTILITY LINES NOT SHOWN ON THIS DRAWING SHALL BE VERIFIED IN

THE FIELD BY THE CONTRACTOR PRIOR TO ANY EXCAVATION.

EXISTING UTILITY NOTE:

N

FREEW
AY

580

SITE

No. 9583

VESTING

Item 9 - Attachment 2 
Planning Commission 

December 1, 2021

Page 27 of 47



Page 28 of 47



TRACT  8621
1173 HEARST AVENUE

811 SAN RAMON VALLEY BLVD #201

YEARS
DANVILLE, CALIFORNIA 94526

(925) 837-3780 | DEBOLTCIVIL.COM

Item 9 - Attachment 3 
Planning Commission 

December 1, 2021

Page 29 of 47



TRACT  8621
1173 HEARST AVENUE

811 SAN RAMON VALLEY BLVD #201

YEARS
DANVILLE, CALIFORNIA 94526

(925) 837-3780 | DEBOLTCIVIL.COM

Item 9 - Attachment 3 
Planning Commission 

December 1, 2021

Page 30 of 47



TRACT  8621
1173 HEARST AVENUE

811 SAN RAMON VALLEY BLVD #201

YEARS
DANVILLE, CALIFORNIA 94526

(925) 837-3780 | DEBOLTCIVIL.COM

Item 9 - Attachment 3 
Planning Commission 

December 1, 2021

Page 31 of 47



TRACT  8621
1173 HEARST AVENUE

811 SAN RAMON VALLEY BLVD #201

YEARS
DANVILLE, CALIFORNIA 94526

(925) 837-3780 | DEBOLTCIVIL.COM

Item 9 - Attachment 3 
Planning Commission 

December 1, 2021

Page 32 of 47



TRACT  8621
1173 HEARST AVENUE

811 SAN RAMON VALLEY BLVD #201

YEARS
DANVILLE, CALIFORNIA 94526

(925) 837-3780 | DEBOLTCIVIL.COM

Item 9 - Attachment 3 
Planning Commission 

December 1, 2021

Page 33 of 47



TRACT  8621
1173 HEARST AVENUE

811 SAN RAMON VALLEY BLVD #201

YEARS
DANVILLE, CALIFORNIA 94526

(925) 837-3780 | DEBOLTCIVIL.COM

Item 9 - Attachment 3 
Planning Commission 

December 1, 2021

Page 34 of 47



TRACT  8621
1173 HEARST AVENUE

811 SAN RAMON VALLEY BLVD #201

YEARS
DANVILLE, CALIFORNIA 94526

(925) 837-3780 | DEBOLTCIVIL.COM

·

·

Item 9 - Attachment 3 
Planning Commission 

December 1, 2021

Page 35 of 47



TRACT  8621
1173 HEARST AVENUE

811 SAN RAMON VALLEY BLVD #201

YEARS
DANVILLE, CALIFORNIA 94526

(925) 837-3780 | DEBOLTCIVIL.COM

No. 9583

Item 9 - Attachment 3 
Planning Commission 

December 1, 2021

Page 36 of 47



Danville, California  94526
925/837-3780 Job No.:

DeBolt Civil Engineering
811 San Ramon Valley Boulevard

Date:

By:

Scale:
CONDOMINIUM PLAN

ECM

20281

09/07/2021

1" = 30'

BOUNDARY MAP

TRACT 8621
1173 HEARST AVENUE

Item 9 - Attachment 3 
Planning Commission 

December 1, 2021

Page 37 of 47



Job No.:

Date:

By:

Scale:
CONDOMINIUM PLAN

811 SAN RAMON VALLEY BLVD #201

YEARS
DANVILLE, CALIFORNIA 94526

(925) 837-3780 | DEBOLTCIVIL.COM ECM

20281

09/07/2021

1" = 10'

CONDO UNITS #1 & 2 - 1ST FLOOR

ASSOCIATION PROPERTY (AP)

PL

PL

TRACT 8621
1173 HEARST AVENUE

Item 9 - Attachment 3 
Planning Commission 

December 1, 2021

Page 38 of 47



Job No.:

Date:

By:

Scale:
CONDOMINIUM PLAN

811 SAN RAMON VALLEY BLVD #201

YEARS
DANVILLE, CALIFORNIA 94526

(925) 837-3780 | DEBOLTCIVIL.COM ECM

20281

09/07/2021

1" = 10'

CONDO UNITS #3 & 4 - 1ST FLOOR

ASSOCIATION PROPERTY (AP)

PL

PL

TRACT 8621
1173 HEARST AVENUE

Item 9 - Attachment 3 
Planning Commission 

December 1, 2021

Page 39 of 47



Job No.:

Date:

By:

Scale:
CONDOMINIUM PLAN

811 SAN RAMON VALLEY BLVD #201

YEARS
DANVILLE, CALIFORNIA 94526

(925) 837-3780 | DEBOLTCIVIL.COM ECM

20281

09/07/2021

1" = 10'

CONDO UNIT #5 - 1ST FLOOR

ASSOCIATION PROPERTY (AP)

PL

PL

TRACT 8621
1173 HEARST AVENUE

Item 9 - Attachment 3 
Planning Commission 

December 1, 2021

Page 40 of 47



Job No.:

Date:

By:

Scale:
CONDOMINIUM PLAN

811 SAN RAMON VALLEY BLVD #201

YEARS
DANVILLE, CALIFORNIA 94526

(925) 837-3780 | DEBOLTCIVIL.COM ECM

20281

09/07/2021

1" = 10'

CONDO UNITS #1 & 2 - 2ND FLOOR

ASSOCIATION PROPERTY (AP)

PL

PL

TRACT 8621
1173 HEARST AVENUE

Item 9 - Attachment 3 
Planning Commission 

December 1, 2021

Page 41 of 47



Job No.:

Date:

By:

Scale:
CONDOMINIUM PLAN

811 SAN RAMON VALLEY BLVD #201

YEARS
DANVILLE, CALIFORNIA 94526

(925) 837-3780 | DEBOLTCIVIL.COM ECM

20281

09/07/2021

1" = 10'

CONDO UNITS #3 & 4 - 2ND FLOOR

ASSOCIATION PROPERTY (AP)

PL

PL

TRACT 8621
1173 HEARST AVENUE

Item 9 - Attachment 3 
Planning Commission 

December 1, 2021

Page 42 of 47



Job No.:

Date:

By:

Scale:
CONDOMINIUM PLAN

811 SAN RAMON VALLEY BLVD #201

YEARS
DANVILLE, CALIFORNIA 94526

(925) 837-3780 | DEBOLTCIVIL.COM ECM

20281

09/07/2021

1" = 10'

CONDO UNIT #5 - 2ND FLOOR

ASSOCIATION PROPERTY (AP)

PL

PL

TRACT 8621
1173 HEARST AVENUE

Item 9 - Attachment 3 
Planning Commission 

December 1, 2021

Page 43 of 47



811 San Ramon Valley Boulevard
DeBolt Civil Engineering

925/837-3780
Danville, California  94526 TYPICAL BUILDING SECTION

NOT TO SCALE

Item 9 - Attachment 3 
Planning Commission 

December 1, 2021

Page 44 of 47



The Planning Commission of the City of Berkeley will hold a public hearing on the above matter, pursuant to Zoning Ordinance Section 21.16.047, on
Wednesday, December 1, 2021 at 7:00 p.m. The hearing will be conducted via Zoom – see the Agenda for details, which can be found here:
https://www.cityofberkeley.info/PC/.

PUBLIC ADVISORY: This meeting will be conducted exclusively through videoconference and teleconference. Pursuant to Government Code Section 54953(e)
and the state declared emergency, this meeting of the Planning Commission will be conducted exclusively through teleconference and Zoom videoconference.
The COVID-19 state of emergency continues to directly impact the ability of the members to meet safely in
person and presents imminent risks to the health of attendees. Therefore, no physical meeting location will be
available

PROJECT DESCRIPTION: Tentative Tract Map #8621 would add 2 duplex units on a lot with an existing
single- family dwelling unit. The subject lot shares open space, pedestrian/ vehicular access, bicycle/ container
storage, and drainage with the adjacent lot. The development project was approved by the Zoning Adjustments
Board (ZAB) on August 30, 2018 and by the City Council on June 9, 2020 after an appeal of the
ZAB approval.

PROJECT APPLICANT: Mark Rhoades
2140 Shattuck Ave., Ste. 705, Berkeley, CA 94704

LOCATION:
1169-1173 Hearst, Berkeley CA, 94704

ENVIRONMENTAL REVIEW STATUS: Construction of the project is categorically exempt pursuant to Section
15332 of the CEQA Guidelines (“In-fill Development Projects”), and approval of the Tentative Map is also categorically exempt pursuant to Section 15331 of the
CEQA Guidelines, which involves the operations and permitting of existing facilities involving no expansion of use beyond prior approvals.

PUBLIC COMMENT & FURTHER INFORMATION
All persons are welcome to attend the virtual hearing and will be given an opportunity to address the Commission. Comments may be made verbally at the
public hearing and/or in writing before the hearing. Written comments must be directed to:

Correspondence received by 12 pm on Wednesday, November 17, 2021, will be included as a Communication in the agenda packet. Correspondence received
after this deadline will be conveyed to the Commission and the public in the following manner:
• Correspondence received by 12pm noon two days before this public hearing will be included in a Supplemental Packet, which will be posted to the online

agenda as a Late Communication one day before the public hearing.
• Correspondence received by 5pm one day before this public hearing, will be included in a second Supplemental Packet, which will be posted to the online

agenda as a Late Communication by 5pm on the day of the public hearing.
• Correspondence received after 5pm one day before this public hearing will be saved as part of the public record.
Note: It will not be possible to submit written comments at the meeting.

COMMUNICATION ACCESS
To request a meeting agenda in large print, Braille, or on audiocassette, or to request a sign language interpreter for the meeting, call (510) 981-7410 (voice) or
981-6903 (TDD). Notice of at least five (5) business days will ensure availability. All materials will be made available via the Planning Commission agenda page
online at https://www.cityofberkeley.info/PC/.

FURTHER INFORMATION
Questions should be directed to Alene Pearson, at (510) 981-7489 or apearson@cityofberkeley.info. Current and past agendas are available on the City of
Berkeley website at: https://www.cityofberkeley.info/PC/

BV 6623407 November 12, 2021

PLANNING
COMMISSION
Notice of Public HeariNg

WedNeSdAy, deCeMber 1, 2021
Tentative Tract Map #8621 – 1169-1173 Hearst

City of Berkeley, Land Use Planning Division
1947 Center Street, 2nd Floor
Berkeley, CA 94704

Alene Pearson
Planning Commission Secretary
Email: apearson@CityofBerkerley.info

Item 9 - Attachment 4 
Planning Commission 

December 1, 2021

Page 45 of 47



Page 46 of 47



Communication

From: Barbara Fisher <barbara.fisher2000@gmail.com>  
Sent: Wednesday, November 10, 2021 2:31 PM 
To: Pearson, Alene <apearson@cityofberkeley.info>; Rebecca Saltzman <Rebecca.Saltzman@bart.gov>; Kesarwani, 
Rashi <RKesarwani@cityofberkeley.info>; All Council <council@cityofberkeley.info> 
Subject: BART parking lot housing 

WARNING: This is not a City of Berkeley email. Do not click links or attachments unless you trust the sender and know the content is 
safe.  

I live in the neighborhood around the North Berkeley BART station.  In regard to building plans:  

 The neighborhood welcomes an affordable, contextual, green‐built project that fits the neighborhood.
 The city must zone the site as an Urban City Center as required by law, but it need not and should not increase

the required minimums (and should specify them as maximums).   

Furthermore, we have an affordable housing crisis, and plenty of market rate units.  Plan Bay Area 2050 (ABAG and 
MTC) states the following ways to address this:     

 Produce 1 million permanently affordable units by 2050 in order to meet the needs of low-income and
unhoused families and individuals.

 Reuse public and community-owned land for affordable housing, in addition to converting old malls
and office parks into new neighborhoods.

 
Let us do the difficult but right thing for the shelter insecure and unhoused on our streets and build 100% affordable 
housing. 

Barbara Fisher 

Communications 
Planning Commission 

December 1, 2021

Page 47 of 47


	Blank Page
	2021-12-01_Item 9_with attachments.pdf
	Blank Page
	Blank Page
	Blank Page
	Blank Page
	Blank Page
	Blank Page
	Blank Page
	Blank Page




